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When we arrived at Rudloe House, the kitchen was smaller than it is now. There
was a narrow store-room between it and the room we christened the "Snug", which
opened from the lobby . We knocked down the partition wall and included this
store-romm in the kitchen. We removed the old fittings from the kitchen, including
an institutional-sized, stainless-steel sink which was under the leaded-light
window. We built a shelved partition, tall enough to back our electric cooker and
we fitted new units around the store-room end of the kitchen, with the sink below
the small window. We built in the white, tiled chimney recess and fitted the
present fireplace. For the first few years we had open fires in the grate.

Our greatest expensive luxury was to put the marble surround and cast-iron fire-
place in the sitting-room, removing the brick supports and rolled, steel joists
which sat on a plinth of 12 ; dark grey, quarry tiles!

Upstairs, the first autumn, we removed the existing showert-tray and surround,
fitted an over-bath shower and made the usefaul cupboard.

Within a year of moving in we had started on the building of the dining-room, lobby
and workshop, altering the passage, which had previously run straight from the
kitchen door to the garage. We copied the sitting-room windows forthe dining-room
and the inner French-window doors from the "Snug" to connect it with the sitting-
room.

We re-roofed both roof slopes within a few years of moving in and positioned the
rear roof lights one by one as we upgraded the attic rooms and made the shower-
room for the boys on the top landing.

We sltered the existing wash-room, off the hall, by enclosing the toilet, making a
new partition and turning the doorway into an archway. This gave us our larder,
once we had broken through from the kitchen. We used the washroom door for the
larder.

The boys became keen motor-cyclists and built themselves the shed beyond the
garage.

At the end of the '80s, we built the outside toilet, for gardeners and mechanics,
which immediately increased the harmony with "her indoors!" The porch screen was
fixed at the same time.

In 1990 we removed the shabby, stone fireplace from the "Snug", put in a flue-
liner alongside the boiler one and fitted the gas fire with a Victorian surround.

The Monkey Puzzle tree,sadly, blew over in the hurricane of early '89. We had
decided by this time to build a conservatory. We took advice on the condition of
the Atlas Cedar and having been told it was nearing the end of its life and could
soon be a danger to the house, we had it felled one lovely autumn day. It was a
very painful time.

Realising that to reach a conservatory through the "Snug" would be impractical
and wishing to fulfil Jean's longing to do more birdwatching from her kitchen-
window, we planned the galley kitchen, broke through the wall and re-used the
pretty, little window in the new area.

When the conservatory wes finished, the paving slabs were laid outside and the
path along side the conservatory made.

There were many minor improvements. One of these was to screed the basement floor.
Another was to increase the paving around the swimming-pool and to build the
rubbish enclosure in the corner of the back garden.

The greenhouse was erected during our first year and proved to have been put in a
suitable place as time went on. The back patio was made when the dining-room and
workshop were finished and it proved excellent for Jean's puppy-rearing interests
as well as for fine-weather upholstery lessons.
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In the walled garden, with
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Peering into the lily-pond.

By the thatched summerkouse
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In the farmyard (house

in background)
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In 1932 Rudloe House was sold by the Pictor family.

The list of the conveyances for the years between 1932 and 1936 is very complex.
There is evidence that the Padfields bought it in 1936 and ran the farm until
and during the Second World War. Thanks to a friendly RAF reconnaissance pilot
there is a fascinating photograph of the house and the farm buildings, taken at

this time.

Aerial photograph taken during the Second World War.

During the war, the Argyll and Sutherland Highlanders

camped in the field in front of the house.
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/ ? \ Plan of the house, farmyard and walled-garden.
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The first scheme

Mr. Padfield died in 1959 and his widow carried on running the farm with her son
and his wife helping, until 1965. The house and land were then put up for sale in
two Lots, both of which were purchased by Kivel Properties. This company gained

permission to develop the land and produced a sceme of well-designed and spaced
dwellings.
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for Rudloe Park - by Kivel Properties - 1967
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Kivel Properties went into liquidation when they had only built a few of the
proposed houses in what is now known as Highlands Close. They had been using
Rudloe House as a site office and their intention was to knock it down at a

later date and build two houses in the space. In 1967, they accepted an offer of
£4,600.00 for the house from a local builder called David Bevan. The land was
re-sold, part of it to a Corsham firm, Smith and Lacy and the rest to Marples
Ridgway. Smith and Lacy re-planned the part of the development proposed for the
land they had purchased, demolishing the Kivel Properties' houses to ground level
and re-building them to fall into line with the newly-planned ones. They laid out
and built Kidston Way and Highlands Close. Marples Ridgway laid out and built
Springfiled Close and Clift Close.

In 1971, David Bevan negotiated with Smith and Lacy for an extra piece of land
adjacent to Highlands Close to increase the size of his back garden. This was
before the development of Highlands Close was complete. He had worked very hard

to improve the house which had fallen into very bad state whilst being used as a
site office. ALl the rooms had had Yale locks and ugly handles put on the doors
and the sash-cords etc. were broken. With the acquisition of the extra land,

David Bevan was able to realise his ambition to make a swimming-pool. He built the
dwarf walls around it and the archway into the back garden. He constructed the
highly-practical double-garage with the stone rescued from the old barn, the stone-
tiles of which had been removed by the first Developers.

After some years, David Bevan sold the house to Mr. Peter Imeson, an Insurance
Agent. The Imesons stayed: for four years: they sold the house in the summer of 1982
to Philip and Jean Wooster, who meved in with their three sons - Anthony 18,

Simon 16 and Richard 10.
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Jean describes the Jarden and the house as they were when the Woosters first moved
in:-

"When e bought the house in July 1982, the garden was very bare. It consisted of
rather rough grass with nettles all round the boundaries. There was a rosebed in
the old lily pond. There were very few trees - the Atlas Cedar, the Monkey Puzzle,
a chestnut by the gate, a holly in the corner by the wall and boundary-fence to
No. 20, the stranvaesia, maple and larch. There were some closely-pjanted conifers
on the road side of the pool. There were no treesin the back garden-

The fences on the back and sides were ranch-type, about eight feet high.

The laurel hedge behind the front wall was well grown and probably dates back to
the turn of the century. (It can be seen in the photograph of 1904).

In the back garden, the Discovery, Bramley, Cox and other apple tree (name urknown)
were planted in the autunn of 1982, along with the wall Conference Pear.and the
Victoria Plun. The damson was planted in 1990 and the flowering cherry in 1992,

The lime and chestnut in the laurel hedge were planted in the winter of 1983, the
laburnum, red hawthorn, mountain ash, crab apple and the cherry tree near the gate
were planted in the autumn of '83. The cherry nearer the house was planted about
two years later.

The first shrubs we planted were the mahonia, weigela, buddleia, forsythia,
philadelphus and viburnum, along the side boundaries. The dark red Weigela was
originally planted where the pebbled area now is and the Euonymous by the garage
step.

We made a rose-bed by the French doors (now in the conservatory!), the herbaceous
borders and the circular bed during the first few years. The rose-bed by the fore-
court was made to take the roses from the other one when the conservatory was put
up in 1991,

Many bulbs were planted around the oldtrees and along the boundary fences.

We planted the creeper, vine, wisteria, deep-red climbing-rose and the white and
pink jasmines against and near the house during the first few years, also, the twe
clenatis and the honeysuckle on the ranch-type fence to the North and the pink
clinbing-rose on the fence to the South.




